
__________________________________ 
City Council Agenda – May 20, 2013 
Page 1 of 2 

 PRELIMINARY AGENDA  
REGULAR SESSION 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
NORTH PLAINS SENIOR CENTER 

31450 NW Commercial 
Monday, May 20, 2013 

7:00 P.M. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER  
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  
 
3. ROLL CALL 
 
4. CONSENT AGENDA:  (The items on the Consent Agenda are normally 

considered in a single motion. Any item may be removed for separate 
consideration upon request by any member of the Council.) 

 
A. Approval of regular session agenda 

B. Approval of minutes of 05/06/2013 Council meeting 

5.  PUBLIC COMMENT: (Persons wishing to speak on matters not on the agenda may 
be recognized at this time.  Speakers must complete a “Public Comment 
Registration form” on the information table and return it to the City Recorder.  You 
are not required to give your address when speaking to the City Council, only your 
name.  Presentations are limited to five minutes.)   

 
6. PRESENTATION: 

Proclamation: Declaring the week of May 19-25, 2013 as Emergency Medical 
Services Week  

 
7. PUBLIC HEARING: 

A. State Revenue Sharing. City Manager presenting second Public Hearing 
accepting public testimony regarding State Revenue Sharing proposed funds 
allocation, and Council recommendation for said allocation. 

 
8. NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Council consider making a donation to the First LEGO League for the purchase 
of robotics equipment and waive rental fees for Jessie Mays. 

B. Farmers’ Market request to close Commercial Street August 17, 2013 
C. Council to discuss a discount for water rates for seniors and persons on fixed 

income. 
D. Council to consider approving renewal of contract with City Attorney. 
E. Council to review April 2013 Check Register 
 

9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
None Scheduled 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 1 of 67



__________________________________ 
City Council Agenda – May 20, 2013 
Page 2 of 2 

 
10. ORDINANCES: 
  
 FIRST READING:   

A. Ordinance No. ________: An ordinance of the City Council of the City of 
North Plains, Oregon, amending Municipal Code 6.15 Business Licenses. 
This item is for first reading by title only. 

 
SECOND READING: 
B. Ordinance No. 416 Municipal Chapter 16.80; An Ordinance of the City 

Council of the City of North Plains, Oregon, Approving Amendments of 
Municipal Code Chapter 16.80 Sign Standards—Zoning and Development 
Code Regarding Signs: (12-009-01-ZDA). This item is for second reading and 
adoption. (First reading was at May 6, 2013 Council meeting.) 

 
11. STAFF REPORTS 
  

Staff reports will be provided by the City Manager, Public Works Director, Police 
Chief, and Library Director 

 
12. COUNCIL REPORTS 

 
A. Council reports will be provided by the Mayor and City Councilors on meetings 

attended and other items. 
 
B. May 2013 Council Calendar 
 

13. ADVICE/INFORMATION ITEMS: 
Memorial Day: Monday, May 27, 2013-City Offices Closed 
 

14. ADJOURNMENT 
 

***** 
North Plains City Council meetings are accessible for disabled individuals.  The City will 
also endeavor to provide services for persons with impaired hearing or vision and other 
services, if requested, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.  To obtain services, please 
call City Hall at (503) 647-5555  

***** 
 
City Council Meetings are scheduled to be held at the North Plains Senior Center, 31450 NW 

Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon, on the following dates at 7:00 p.m.: 
 

Monday, June 3, 2013 Monday, June 17, 2013 Monday, July 1, 2013 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 2 of 67



__________________________________ 
City Council Minutes – May 6, 2013 
Page 1 of 7 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MINUTES REGULAR SESSION 

NORTH PLAINS SENIOR CENTER 
31450 NW Commercial  
Monday, May 6, 2013 

7:00 P.M. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER: Mayor David Hatcher called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Hatcher conducted the flag salute. 
 
3. ROLL CALL: Mayor David Hatcher; Council President Teri Lenahan; Councilors: 

Michael Broome, Michael Demagalski, Charlynn Newton, Glen Warren and Robert 
Kindel, Jr. 

 
Staff present: City Manager Martha DeBry, Public Works Director Blake Boyles, 
Chief of Police Bill Snyder, Library Director Debra Brodie, Account Clerk Margaret 
Reh 

 
4. CONSENT AGENDA: 
 

A. Approval of regular session agenda 

B. Approval of minutes of 4/15/2013 Council meeting 

C. Council to consider Resolution No. 1784 Declaring Armament Equipment Surplus 

Motion by Broome, seconded by Warren to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  
The motion was approved unanimously. 
 
5.  PUBLIC COMMENT:  

Cheri Olson, former Mayor, appeared before the Council to present three things: 
1. Donated a copy of her new book “Surviving” the Teen Driving Years a Manual for 

Defensive Driving: Saving One Life at a Time through Knowledge, Understanding 
and Practice to the North Plains Public Library.  Olson presented it to Library 
Director Debbie Brodie. 

2. Olson expressed her concerns regarding the financial state of the North Plains 
Senior Center.   

3. Olson would like to see a copy of the Council Agenda posted before Friday 
before the Council meetings.  

 
6. PRESENTATION: 

None Scheduled 
 
7. PUBLIC HEARING: 

A. Water Rate Increase: Resolution No. 1785: A Resolution of the City Council of 
the City of North Plains, Oregon, Approving a Water Rate Increase of 3% to be 
Effective October 1, 2013.  

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 3 of 67



__________________________________ 
City Council Minutes – May 6, 2013 
Page 2 of 7 

 
DeBry presented the staff report. Notice of this public hearing was advertised in the city 
newsletter which is distributed with the water bill.  City staff has rearranged some capital 
expenses so they are spread out over a greater amount of time to ensure funds will be 
available. 
 
A 3% increase in consumption rates would have the following effect: 

Units Consumed  
Tier 1 

00-25 ccf 
Tier 2 

26-50 ccf 
Tier 3 

51 ccf and up 

Current rate $3.91 $4.24 $4.79 

3% $4.03 $4.37 $4.93 

* 1 ccf = 100 cubic feet = 748 gallons 
 

Most residents consume roughly 6 units a month which is billed at the 0-25 ccf rate tier.  
The typical impact of the rate increase would be as follows for most residents: 
 

  
Base 
Rate 

6 units 
Consumption 

Total 
Monthly  

Monthly 
Change 

Annual 
Change 

Current $47.50 $23.46 $70.96     

3% $48.93 $24.16 $73.09 $2.13 $25.55 
 

Discussion ensued. Council asked why the base rate was being raised along with 
consumption. DeBry stated they need to be kept in balance to cover fixed costs of providing 
service. 
 
Mayor Hatcher opened the public hearing at 7:16 for anyone in the audience to speak up 
on the issue. No comments were forthcoming.  Hatcher closed the public hearing at 7:17. 
 
A question was raised asking if the TUF fee is subject to the 3% increase being that is 
included on the water bill statement.  DeBry stated that the TUF is not related to the water 
billing. 
 
Motion by Kindel, seconded by Lenahan to approve Resolution No. 1785: A Resolution of 
the City Council of the City of North Plains, Oregon, Approving a Water Rate Increase of 
3% to be Effective October 1, 2013. The motion was approved unanimously. 

 
8. NEW BUSINESS: 

 
A. Council to discuss the proposed Amendment to Host Agreement with Recology 

 
DeBry presented the staff report. DeBry stated there have been several iterations of the 
host agreements over the years between the City of North Plains and the operators of the 
Nature’s Needs facility. 
 
The most recent agreement between Recology and North Plains, approved in 2010 
provides that Recology will pay the City a host fee of $0.50/ton for type 3 feedstock 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 4 of 67



__________________________________ 
City Council Minutes – May 6, 2013 
Page 3 of 7 

materials that include food waste. This fee has historically been placed in a Street Fund—to 
be used to repair Highland Court when necessary from the use of truck traffic. 
 
City staff began discussions with Recology about the agreement last January. The intent of 
the discussions was to provide Recology with the opportunity to support community 
programs, and allow the Council the discretion to determine the best use of funds.  
 
Recology agreed to increase the per ton fee from $.50/ton to $1.00/ton for all materials 
received at the facility. This will not double the revenue as compared to the previous year 
because a reduced amount of tonnage is being delivered to Nature’s Needs. One of the 
conditions of this agreement is that the fund would be called the “Recology Community 
Fund” 
 
Lenahan asked how the fee rate was calculated. DeBry stated it was a negotiated amount. 
 
North Plains is not a regulatory body with this agreement—Washington County is the 
franchise authority that regulates Recology. This fee is not a requirement of law. The 
franchise itself does not require an agreement with North Plains, although it has been 
considered a condition of approval of the franchise. Recology is not obligated to change the 
host fee. 
 
Hatcher called for a discussion of the Council. Lenahan stated she is not comfortable with 
calling it “Recology Community Fund.” She agrees that Recology does give a lot to the 
community but is concerned that if it is called a “Community Fund” it will upset citizens who 
don’t support Recology.  
 
Newton would like to see some of the money remain in a line item in the street fund.  
 
Newton also expressed her concerns with the name of the fund. She wants to make sure 
we are not being used as a public relations tool. 
 
Since these funds, plus the $57,000 collected in the past can be allocated in the General 
Fund, it will assist with building the fund balance or be used for projects including street 
projects.  If the agreement is not amended, budget projections should be amended to 
reflect a lower income and no transfer of assets from the Street Fund to General Fund.   
 
Motion by Demagalski, seconded by Kindel, authorizing City Manager DeBry to enter 
negotiations of an amended agreement with Recology using the label “Recology Fund”. 
The motion was approved unanimously. 
 

B. Discussion of Municipal Code Chapter 6.15 Business Licenses 
 
DeBry presented the revision of Municipal Code Chapter 6.15. City Attorney suggested 
replacing the ordinance rather than modifying as the current ordinance contains some odd 
language. 
 
The City’s existing business ordinance Chapter 6.15 creates the frame work for business 
licenses that “regulates” commerce in North Plains.  As such the City has the discretion to 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 5 of 67



__________________________________ 
City Council Minutes – May 6, 2013 
Page 4 of 7 

not issue a license, and in theory close a business by withdrawing its license.  The current 
fees of $70 set up and $50 annual renewal does not provide adequate funding for 
resources to actually review each application on an annual basis, conduct site visits and 
inspections.  Staff may not be qualified to inspect facilities to ensure they are operating in a 
safe or lawful manner.   
 
In practice the City has a revenue raising process.  The license exists for the purpose of 
raising revenue that allows the City to provide services to businesses and residents.  
Business license fees raise about $6,500 annually, with set up and first year fees waived 
thru December 2013.  No changes in the fees are recommended. 
 
No decision was made. This item was for discussion only. 
 

C. Discuss of City Manager Performance Review Process 
 

Mayor Hatcher requested of the Council to move this item behind Agenda Item 10A. 
Council agreed to this change of the agenda.  

 
9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

None Scheduled 
 
10. ORDINANCES: 
  
 FIRST READING: 

 
A. Ordinance No. 416, An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of North Plains, 

Oregon, Approving Amendments of Municipal Code Chapter 16.80 Sign 
Standards—Zoning and Development Code Regarding Signs: 12-009-01-ZDA. 
First reading by title only. 

 
As discussed with the City Council on April 1 and May 6, 2013, a revised sign ordinance 
was recommended by the Planning Commission. 
 
Staff was asked to invite the owners of the three non-conforming signs to comment before 
the Council on the sign ordinance (Chevron, McDonald’s and 76 which are all located at 
Glencoe and Highland Court).  Representatives of these three commercial businesses 
provided comments and requested that Council consider amending 16.80.045 to 
grandfather existing signs. 
 
James and Jamie Monroe, owners of McDonald’s, requested that Council provide relief 
from a requirement in the sign ordinance that requires non-conforming signs be brought 
into conformance upon approval of a design review.  
 
Along with the Monroe’s, Betty Martin of the 76 Station and Sukhvir Josan of the Chevron 
Station asked the Council to amend the ordinance to grandfather their signs so they can 
remain on permanent basis. Discussion ensued. 
 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 6 of 67



__________________________________ 
City Council Minutes – May 6, 2013 
Page 5 of 7 

Council decided to adopt the changes recommended by the Planning Commission, with an 
amendment to include a new section 16.80.045.D which grandfathers all existing highway 
signs, exempting them from conformance requirements but does not allow for their 
alteration or replacement: 

Motion by Lenahan, seconded by Warren, to read Ordinance No. 416, An Ordinance of the 
City Council of the City of North Plains, Oregon, Approving Amendments of Municipal Code 
Chapter 16.80 Sign Standards—Zoning and Development Code Regarding Signs: 12-009-
01-ZDA, by title only for the first time along with the amendment to allow for highway signs. 
The motion was approved unanimously. 
 
Mayor Hatcher asked DeBry to read Ordinance No. 416 for the first time by title only along 
with the amendment to allow for highway signs. 
 
The agreed upon amendment was: 
16.80.045.D  Highway Signs.  Any non-conforming signs located at tax lots 
1N312AB00400, 1N301DC06300 or 1N3120000200, that were approved under previous 
regulations, or for which a variance was granted, and which was installed prior to April 1, 
2013 will be permitted until such time that all or a portion of the sign is removed or 
substantially damaged for any reason including acts of god.  Highway signs cannot be 
altered in physical dimensions. 
 
Mayor Hatcher thanked all the business owners for attending the meeting. 
 

SECOND READING: 
 
B. None Scheduled 
 

11. Discussion of City Manager Performance Review Process 
(Previously moved down from earlier on the agenda) 

 
Council wanted to touch base on the process for the performance evaluation of the City 
Manager. Lenahan is evaluating a few websites that can be used to survey the Council and 
staff for input to the performance evaluation. DeBry’s contract is set to expire the end of 
June. 
 
12. STAFF REPORTS 
  
DeBry stated Planning and Development activity continues to increase. DMI, DR Horton 
and McKay Fields are all moving forward. Plus, there is great interest with in-fill 
development.  The discounted rates are having the intended impact. Hatcher mentioned 
that B. Bobosky has met with Stewart King regarding development in the East expansion 
area. Polygon Homes are the intended builders. 
 
There have been inquiries regarding another possible annexation request of some of the 
north UGB properties.  DeBry suggested that maybe it can be a more gentle process on the 
community this time. 
 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 7 of 67



__________________________________ 
City Council Minutes – May 6, 2013 
Page 6 of 7 

DeBry reported she has been voted on to the Board of Directors at the North Plains Senior 
Plaza. 
 
Public Works Director Boyles reported on the Claxtar Street improvement.  The project may 
be completed by Labor Day, but have a buffer of September 30, 2013 for completion. 
 
A new swing set was installed at Jessie Mays and has already been put to good use. 
 
PGE has installed some of the new LED streetlights along Claxtar. This is part of a pilot 
program. It will cost the city about $70/ month for the operation of all the streetlights that 
have been installed along Claxtar. 
 
Boyles gave an update on the Community Garden. It has become a very popular 
community project. When the plots were initially installed they were very generous with the 
spacing.  There are 15 people on a waiting list for a plot.  There may be some empty beds 
behind the Tristar Properties building that could be used. One of those plots has already 
been turned into a horseshoe pit for the 4th of July festivities. 
 
The tunnel under the new Glencoe Road/Highway 26 interchange is underway. Kindel 
reported that it is much larger than he had pictured it. 
 
Library Director Brodie reported that the bake sale took in $300 in six hours. The next 
fundraiser is the plant sale (mostly vegetables) that will be taking place on Saturdays 
throughout May. 
 
Police Chief Snyder reported that he is compiling statistics and is getting feedback on the 
electronic speed sign that is installed on North Avenue. 
 
The Chief’s community contacts are increasing. These are casual residential outreaches 
that he conducts. Lenahan congratulated him on this and would like to see it to continue to 
increase. 
 
North Plains Police will be assisting Hillsboro Police Department with the Hippy Chick Run 
on Saturday, May 11, 2013. This is a ½ marathon. Snyder stated that this type of 
cooperation between police departments assists in building camaraderie between the two 
forces. 
 
Warren inquired about the police car that sat at Jessie Mays Park almost the whole night 
before the plant sale on May 4th.  Warren reported that he had citizens wonder why they 
were there and not protecting the whole city.  Snyder stated it was a reserve officer who 
was on that night and he returned to Jessie Mays after completing his rounds.  This was 
offered to the Garden Club as a courtesy.  Broom stated that he also volunteered for a shift 
in the security detail for the Garden Club from 6:00 to 7:00 a.m. 
 
Snyder reported that Councilor Kindel, with the approval of DeBry, had nominated Snyder 
to be on the Washington County Communicator CEO Board.  This is a volunteer position 
and it will take approximately one hour per month. 
 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 8 of 67



__________________________________ 
City Council Minutes – May 6, 2013 
Page 7 of 7 

13. COUNCIL REPORTS 
 

Lenahan inquired about the increase in planning.  She asked DeBry if we have increased 
the budget to get more help with the planning process.  DeBry will be bringing Carol 
Connell in as a consultant as needed. If developers want the process expedited then the 
costs can be incorporated into the developer fees. 
 
Broome sought the Council’s approval to develop his own committee to help organize and 
help out with the various music events scheduled for this year. The consensus of the 
Council was for Broom to move forward with the development of this committee. 

 
14. ADVICE/INFORMATION ITEMS: 

Memorial Day: Monday, May 27, 2013-City Offices Closed 
 

15. ADJOURNMENT:  Mayor Hatcher adjourned the meeting at 9:00 p.m. 
 

 
 
_______________________________   
David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
 
 
_______________________________ Date approved __________________ 
Martha DeBry, City Manager/Recorder 

 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 9 of 67



  
 

 

Agenda Item No. 6 

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  May 16, 2013 

To:  City Council 

From:  Martha DeBry City Manager 

Subject: Metro West Emergency Medical Services Presentation 

Request:  Presentation by Metro West Ambulance, and request to authorize the Mayor 
to sign the proposed Proclamation declaring May 19 – 25, 2013, as Emergency Medical 
Services Week. 

Background:  Since 2004, the City has recognized Emergency Medical Services Week 
on the third week in May.  Metro West Ambulance has made presentations before the 
City Council recognizing their continued support of emergency medical services 
personnel in the City of North Plains. 

Fiscal Impact:  There would be no fiscal impact associated with this request. 

Environmental Issues:  There would be no environment issues associated with this 
request. 

Sample Motion:   Move to authorize the Mayor to sign the proposed Proclamation 
declaring May 19 – 25, 2013, as Emergency Medical Services Week. 

Attachments:  Proclamation 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 10 of 67



City of North Plains, Oregon 
Emergency Medical Services Week Proclamation 

To designate the Week of May 19-25, 2013, as Emergency Medical Services Week 

WHEREAS, emergency medical services is a vital public service; and 
 

WHEREAS, the members of emergency medical services teams are ready to provide 
lifesaving care to those in need 24 hours a day, seven days a week; and 
 

WHEREAS, access to quality emergency care dramatically improves the survival and 
recovery rate of those who experience sudden illness or injury; and 
 

WHEREAS, the emergency medical services system consists of emergency physicians, 
emergency nurses, emergency medical technicians, paramedics, firefighters, educators, 
administrators and others; and 
 

WHEREAS, the members of emergency medical services teams, whether career or 
volunteer, engage in thousands of hours of specialized training and continuing education to 
enhance their lifesaving skills; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is appropriate to recognize the value and the accomplishments of 
emergency medical services providers by designating Emergency Medical Services Week; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of North Plains hereby recognizes 
EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES WEEK and hereby proclaims the week of May 19-25, 
2013 as Emergency Medical Services Week in North Plains with the theme “EMS: One 

Mission One Team”, and encourages its citizens to observe this week with appropriate 
programs ceremonies and activities. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused to be affixed the Seal 
of the City of North Plains, Oregon, this 20th day of May, 20, 2013. 
 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON  

 

__________________________________ 
David Hatcher, Mayor  

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 11 of 67



Please RSVP to Stella Rausch-Scott - 503-648-6658 ext 111�_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 12 of 67



 

Agenda Item No. 7A 

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

Date: May 20, 2013 

To: City Council 
From: City Manager Martha DeBry 
Subject: State Revenue Sharing Public Hearing 

 
Request:  Council to conduct a second Public Hearing to take public testimony on 
proposed allocation of the State Revenue Sharing funds. 
 
Background:  Two public hearings are required for State Revenue Sharing.  The first 
was held before the Budget Committee on May 13, 2013 and the second is tonight, May 
20, 2013, before City Council.  The hearings are to allow the public and governing body 
to discuss how the City plans to spend funds received through State Revenue Sharing.  
Historically, the following funds have been received by the City: 
 
2008-2009:   $14,784 
2009-2010:   $15,297 
2010-2011:   $15,179 
2011-2012:   $15,674 
2012-2013:   $12,891 year to date 
2013-2014 $13,000 projected  
 
The State Revenue Sharing distribution for North Plains for fiscal year 2013–2014 is 
projected at $13,000. The proposed budget reflects that these funds will help balance 
the budget, which provides funding for the following services:  police protection, street 
construction, maintenance and lighting, storm sewer maintenance, potable water 
delivery and storage, and planning, zoning, and subdivision control.  The City has 
received State Revenue Sharing funds for the past 19 years. 
 
Tonight the City Council is conducting the second public hearing and is anticipated to 
move to utilize these funds in balancing the General Fund, and has been reflected as 
such in the proposed budget for fiscal year 2013–2014. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  The allocation of $13,000 is anticipated and is proposed to benefit the 
General Fund. 
 
Environmental Issues:  There are no environmental impacts associated with this 
action. 
 
Sample Motion: 1) Open the public hearing and request public testimony regarding 

proposed allocation of the State Shared Revenues. 
 2) Close the Public Hearing 

(No further action is required until the City Council approves the budget.) 
_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 13 of 67



 

 
Page 1 of 2 Resolution No. 17xx 
Adopted: June 3, 2013 

RESOLUTION NO. 17xx 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, 
OREGON, CERTIFYING THE PROVISION OF MUNICIPAL SERVICES 

ENUMERATED IN ORS 221.760 AND ESTABLISHING THE ELIGIBILITY OF THE 
CITY TO RECEIVE STATE-SHARED REVENUES FOR FISCAL YEAR 2013 – 2014  

 
 
WHEREAS, ORS 221.760 provides the officer responsible for disbursing funds to cities 
under ORS 323.455, 366.785 to 366.820, and 471.805 shall, in the case of a city 
located within a county having more than 100,000 inhabitants according to the most 
recent federal decennial census, disburse such funds only if the city provided four or 
more of the following services: 
 

(1) Police protection 
 
(2) Fire protection 
 
(3) Street construction, maintenance, and lighting 
 
(4) Sanitary sewer 
 
(5) Storm sewer 
 
(6) Planning, zoning, and subdivision control 
 
(7) One or more utility services, and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of North Plains officials recognize the desirability of assisting the 
state officer responsible for determining the eligibility of cities to receive such funds in 
accordance with ORS 221.760. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON, AS FOLLOWS: 
   
  Section 1. The City of North Plains hereby certifies that it provides the 

following six municipal services enumerated in ORS 221.760 
Section 1: 

 
1.  Police protection 

 
2.  Street construction, maintenance, and lighting 
 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 14 of 67



 

 
Page 2 of 2 Resolution No. 17xx 
Adopted: June 3, 2013 

3.  Sanitary sewer 
 
4.  Storm sewers 

 
5.  Planning, zoning and subdivision control 

 
6.  One or more utility services, specifically potable water 

 
   INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 3rd day of June, 2013. 
 
     CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON 
 

 

 
BY:  _____________________________________ 

David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
BY:  ______________________________________ 

Martha DeBry, City Manager/City Recorder 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 15 of 67



 

 
Page 1 of 1 – Resolution Number 17xx 
Adopted:  June 3, 2013 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 17XX 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, 

OREGON, DECLARING THE CITY’S ELECTION TO RECEIVE STATE SHARED 

REVENUES FOR FISCAL YEAR 2013 - 2014 

 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to ORS 221.770, the City hereby elects to receive state revenues 
for fiscal year 2013 – 2014. 
 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1. That the City of North Plains hereby elects to receive State 
shared revenues for fiscal year 2013 – 2014, pursuant to 
ORS 221.770. 

 
 

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 3rd day of June, 2013. 
 
 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON 

 

 

 
BY:  _____________________________________ 

David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
BY:  ______________________________________ 

Martha DeBry, City Manager/City Recorder 
 
 
I certify that public hearings were held before the City of North Plains Budget 
Committee on May 13, 2013, and before the North Plains City Council on May 20, 
2013, giving citizens an opportunity to comment on the use of State Revenue Sharing. 
 

______________________________________ 
Martha DeBry, City Manager/City Recorder 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 16 of 67



 

Agenda Item No: 8A  
 
CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 
31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 
Date:   May 13, 2013 

To:  City Council 

From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 

Subject: Donation to First LEGO League 

 
Request:   Council consider making a donation to the First LEGO League for the 
purchase of robotics equipment and waive rental fees for Jessie Mays. 
 
Background:  Resident John George founded a First LEGO League (FLL) 
(www.firstlegoleague.org ) team in North Plains last September.  In 2012, Mr. 
George obtained three robot kits to construct robots from IBM.  His goal was to 
involve children between 9-16 years old to build and program robots to compete 
with other teams locally.  The program is designed to teach children problem 
solving, engineering concepts, robotics and presentation techniques.  Eight 
young boys from North Plains participated in the program.  Mr. George 
volunteers his time, and kids pay $70 to participate.  A breakdown of the costs for 
the 2013 season is attached. 
 
The FLL recently approached the Knights of Pythias to request $540 in funding 
for robotic kits to be used in 2013 challenge Nature’s Fury.  Because of other 
financial commitments, the Knights could not fully fund the FLL.  The Knights 
submitted a request to the City to match its $270 donation to the FLL (see email 
from Roger Newton included in packet.)  
 
Council may recall it approved a fee waiver last September for the FLL.  Jessie 
Mays is one of the few facilities in the community equipped with free wifi which is 
needed to operate the robots.  The regular fee for instruction is $7 per day.  Over 
12 weeks the total would be $84.  The FLL would like to continue its use of the 
facility. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  The cash donation amount would be $270, and estimated rental 
fees for FLL meetings is $84.   
 
Recommendation:  Council consider matching the Knights donation of $270 to 
acquire robotics kits, and approve the waiver of fees for the FLL for 2013/2014 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 17 of 67

http://www.firstlegoleague.org/


2013 FLL Nature's Fury Balance Sheet

Description Credit Debit
2013 FLL Team Registration $225.00
Field Setup Kit $75.00
FLL NXT Robot Set with DC Battery $435.00

$50.00
ORTOP 2012 FLL Qualifying Tournament Registration $75.00

$100.00

6 member team at $70 each $420.00

Subtotal $420.00 $960.00
Balance -$540.00

Date 
(Receipt)

Project materials (FredMeyer:tape boards, paper)

Shirts (Trini Industries, Inc.)

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 18 of 67



 

Agenda Item No. 8B 

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:   May 13, 2013 

To:  City Council 

From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 

Subject: Farmers’ Market request to close Commercial Street August 17, 2013 

Request:  Council authorize the closure of Commercial Street on August 17, 2013 for a 
farm truck and tractor show. 
 
Background:  In March, the Farmers’ Market Board requested and received Council’s 
approval for the closure of Commercial Street on July 20.  The purpose of the closure 
was to host a Farm Truck and Tractor Show between 7 a.m. and 4 p.m., which would be 
a fund raiser for the Farmer’s Market.   
 
The Market is now requesting August 17, 2013 instead of July 20.  The event would 
include the show and a barbeque hosted by the Senior Center. 
 
Staff supports the closure of the street to attract more visitors to the downtown area and 
fundraise for community groups. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  The Market Board is asking that related street closure and public 
assembly fees be waived. 
 
Environmental Issues:  There are no environmental issues associated with this item. 
 
Recommendation:  Council approve the change in date.  
 
Sample Motion:  I move to approve the street closure for the farm truck and tractor 
show on August 17, 2013. 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 19 of 67



_____________________________ 
Page 1 of 2—2013 Water Rates 
 

 

Agenda Item No. 8C 
 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

Date:   May 14, 2013 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  Martha DeBry-City Manager 

Subject: Discount for water rates 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Request:  Council provide direction regarding a discount water rate structure. 
 
Background:  City Council recently adopted a change in water rates to be effective 
October 2013.  At that time some Councilors expressed concern about rates increasing 
for seniors and persons on fixed incomes.  
 
Council can authorize discounts that would help offset the rate increase.  For example, 
a credit of $1-$2 per month could be given to households that certify one or more 
seniors over a certain age reside in a single family dwelling (attached or unattached).  
Some agencies such as Portland Water Bureau offer credits to low-income households.  
The process for determining if a household is low-income or in poverty is not as 
objective as something like age.  Variables such as age and size of household should 
be considered to make such a determination: 

2009 Federal Poverty Guidelines for Washington Count 

Family Size  Yearly income  
Monthly 
income  

Hourly 
income  

1 $10,830 $ 903 $ 5.64 

2 $14,570 $1,214 $ 7.59 

3 $18,310 $1,526 $ 9.54 

4 $22,050 $1,838 $11.49 

5 $25,790 $2,149 $13.43 

6 $29,530 $2,461 $15.38 

7 $33,270 $2,773 $17.33 

8 $37,010 $3,084 $19.27 

over 8 add per child  $3,740   

  Source: Federal Register, Vol. 74, No. 14, Jan. 23, 2009, pp. 4199-4201 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 20 of 67



_____________________________ 
Page 2 of 2—2013 Water Rates 
 

Because of limited resources, the City would need to rely on a self-certification process 
to establish eligibility for the credit.  Recertification would be required on an annual 
basis.  This can be accomplished using the water bill/newsletter 
 
Cornelius offers a $5 monthly discount to seniors for water bills.  Forest Grove, Banks, 
Beaverton, and Hillsboro do not offer a discount. 
 
A different alternative the Council could consider is providing relief from the 
Transportation Utility Fee (TUF) which is billed with water and is currently set at $1.30 
for a single family home.  While this would not affect the income of the water fund, it 
would reduce income for the street fund.  
 
Fiscal Impact:  It is difficult to estimate how many households would be able to take 
advantage of a discount.  A large number of the community’s seniors live in rented 
apartment housing and do not have an individual water billing account.  If 200 
households (about ¼ of all customers) received the discount it would result in loss 
revenue of $200-$400 a month, or $2,400-$4,800 per year.  Any loss of income to the 
water fund would need to be evaluated with subsequent water rate increases.  It may 
have some impact on future water increases.  Fortunately, the City will have more new 
homes added to the rate base which may help offset all or some of this loss. 
 
Environmental Issues: None identified. 
 
Recommendation:  Council discuss if it wants to provide a discounted rate structure. 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 21 of 67



 

_____________________________ 
Page 1 of 1—City Attorney 
 

 

Agenda Item No. 8D 
 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

Date:   May 14, 2013 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  Martha DeBry-City Manager 

Subject: Resolution 1786 renewing personal services contract for City Attorney 
services 

Request:  Council consider renewing City Attorney contract. 
 
Background:  Beery, Elsner and Hammond, LLP has provided City Attorney services 
to North Plains.  Paul Elsner has been designated as the City Attorney, and as such 
advises staff and Council in all legal matters including issues related to land use, 
personnel, contracts and municipal code revisions.  The current contract is set to expire 
on June 30, 2013.  The term of the new contract is for 3 years, unless terminated earlier 
by the City (no notice or cause is required.) 
 
Rates for City Attorney services are as follows: 
 

Service Rate per Hour 

Attorneys - Partners and Of Counsel $200 
Attorneys -Associates $175 
Paralegals $125 
Legal Assistants $  95 

 
The City pays only for the services it uses and there are no contract minimums.  No 
other legal firms are under contract with the City.  (In the past Bullard law was used for 
personnel matters.)  BEH is also City Attorney for Hillsboro, Forest Grove, Happy 
Valley, Sandy, and Sherwood. 
 
Staff keeps legal costs at a minimum, by drafting resolutions and ordinances for the 
Attorney’s review, seeking the free assistance of CIS Pre-loss legal services, and 
minimizing on-site visits. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  The 2013 budget allocates $25,000 for City Attorney services.  This 
number may increase slightly as planning issues are becoming more common. 
 
Environmental Issues: None identified. 
 
Recommendation:  Council adopt Resolution No. 1786 renewing the personal services 
contract with Beery, Elsner and Hammond. 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 22 of 67



 

RESOLUTION NO. 1786 

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, 

OREGON, AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN BEERY, ELSNER AND HAMMOND, LLC, AND THE CITY 

TO PROVIDE LEGAL SERVICES 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined the City Attorney position shall be 
by contract rather than an employee; and 
 

WHEREAS, Beery, Elsner and Hammond, LLC, has served as the City Attorney 
since January 20, 1998; and the contract has been renewed every three years by 
Resolutions 887, 922, 1053, 1202, 1380, and 1555; and 
 

WHEREAS, the current agreement is set to expire June 30, 2013; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON, approve continuing a contractual relationship with the 
firm of Beery, Elsner and Hammond, LLC and authorizes the City Manager to enter into 
an agreement that is Exhibit “A”. 
 

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 20th day of May, 2013. 
 
 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON 

 

 

 
BY:  _____________________________________ 

David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
BY:  ______________________________________ 

Martha DeBry, City Manager/City Recorder 
 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 23 of 67



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 24 of 67

psmith
Text Box
Exhibit A



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 25 of 67



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 26 of 67



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 27 of 67



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 28 of 67



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 29 of 67



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 30 of 67



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 31 of 67



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 32 of 67



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 33 of 67



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 34 of 67



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 35 of 67



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 36 of 67



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 37 of 67



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 38 of 67



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 39 of 67



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 40 of 67



_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 41 of 67



_____________________________ 
Page 1 of 1—2013 Water Rates 
 

 

Agenda Item No. 10A 
 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:   May 13, 2013 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  Martha DeBry-City Manager 

Subject: First reading of an ordinance to amend Municipal Code Chapter 6.15 
business licenses  

_____________________________________________________________________ 
Request:  Council read the proposed ordinance for the first time by title only. 
 
Background:  The City’s existing business ordinance Chapter 6.15 creates the frame 
work for business licenses that “regulates” commerce in North Plains.  As such the City 
has the discretion to not issue a license, and in theory close a business by withdrawing 
its license.  The current fees of $70 set up and $50 annual renewal does not provide 
adequate funding for resources to actually review each application on an annual basis, 
conduct site visits and inspections.  Staff may not be qualified to inspect facilities to 
ensure they are operating in a safe or lawful manner.   
 
In practice the City has a revenue raising process.  The license exists for the purpose of 
raising revenue that allows the City to provide services to businesses and residents.  
Business license fees raise about $6,500 annually, with set up and first year fees 
waived through December 2013.  No changes in the fees are recommended.  
 
The business license renewal process is conducted primarily by email which has greatly 
reduced the amount of staff time spent on the process.   
 
The City Attorney has recommended the City replace its ordinance rather than 
modifying the existing ordinance.  The existing ordinance which is in Council’s packet 
has some odd language. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  Adopting the ordinance would have no fiscal impact.  
 
Environmental Issues: None identified. 
 
Recommendation:  Council read the ordinance amending Chapter 6.15 for the first 
time by title only: 
 
Ordinance title: An ordinance of the City Council of the City of North Plains, Oregon, 

amending Municipal Code Chapter 6.15 Business Licenses 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 42 of 67



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. XXX  
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON, 
AMENDING MUNICIPAL CODE 6.15 BUSINESS LICENSES 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of North Plains has an ordinance to administer business license 
permits, and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council seeks to clarify the language of the ordinance to 
ensure business licenses are treated as a revenue raising process rather than a regulatory 
process. 

 
 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON, 
ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1. The Municipal Code Chapter 6.15 Business Licenses as stated 

on Exhibit A.  
 

Section 2. Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance or its application 
to any person or circumstances is held to be unconstitutional or 
invalid for any reason, the remainder of this Ordinance or the 
application of the provisions to other persons or circumstances 
shall not be affected. 

 
INTRODUCED on the 20th day of May, 2013, AND ADOPTED 

this ____ day of ____, 2013. 
 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON 
 
 
 
 
By:  _______________________________________ 

David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
By:  _______________________________________ 

Martha DeBry, City Manager/City Recorder 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 43 of 67



Chapter 6.15 

BUSINESS LICENSES 

 

.010 Purpose. 

This Chapter is designed to provide revenue for municipal purposes and has no regulatory 

purpose whatsoever.  Issuance of a Business License by the City is not to be construed nor is it 

permission or license to engage in any business activity or occupation. The fees, penalties and 

other charges required or imposed are in addition to any other regulatory or non-regulatory 

certificate, license or permit fee that may be required by any federal, state or local jurisdiction 

including the City. 

 

.020 Definitions 

As used in this Chapter: 

 

A. “Business” includes all professions, trades, occupations, shops, apartments, tenements, 

office buildings and every kind of calling carried on for profit or livelihood.  

B. “Certificate of Compliance” “Certificate” “License” means the document issued upon full 

compliance with the terms of this Chapter for the tax year in question. 

C. “City” means the City of North Plains, Oregon. 

D. “Employee” means any person working for, within or under the auspices of a business 

(other than a bona fide independent contractor or leased employee) regardless of the 

employment, management or ownership status of that person; including common law and 

statutory wage earning, commission and salaried employees, executive and common 

employees, agents, sales representatives, sole proprietors, partners, corporate officers and 

any and all persons associated directly with the business. 

E. “Exemption certificate” means a document issued by the City in lieu of a License to 

businesses and activities qualifying under Section .030. 

F.  “Motor vehicle for hire” means a motor vehicle used in the transportation of passengers 

for hire (including a taxicab or limousine) not operating over a fixed and definite route as 

well as a shuttle car that may operate under a fixed route and time schedule. 

G. “Person” includes all domestic and foreign corporations, associations, syndicates, 

partnerships, joint ventures and individuals transacting and carrying on any business in 

the City excepting individuals whose compensation is based on an hourly, daily, weekly, 

monthly or annual wage or salary. 

H. “Transfer” means to transfer ownership or name of a business. It does not mean a change 

in business location. 

 

.030 License or Certificate Required 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 44 of 67

psmith
Text Box
Exhibit A



A. Except as provided in subsection (B), any person operating or carrying on business in the 

City shall obtain a Certificate of Compliance and pay the required fee with the exception 

of businesses specifically exempted from payment thereof by state or federal law. 

 

B. In lieu of a Certificate of Compliance and the requirement to pay related fees, an 

Exemption Certificate shall be issued without charge to businesses and activities 

described in (1) through (6) below.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, a qualifying business 

or activity must complete and file an initial and thereafter an annual renewal Exemption 

Certificate application. Businesses and activities qualified under this provision are: 

1. Religious, educational, governmental and charitable organizations specifically 

exempt from taxation under the Federal Internal Revenue Code; 

2. Utilities franchised by and paying a franchise fee to the City; 

3. Any business or occupation specifically exempt from the payment of a non-regulatory 

business license fees under state law or federal law; 

4. Any household or garage sale. 

5. Any contractor or landscape contractor which is exempt from payment of a business 

license fee under state law;  

6. Participants selling goods or services at an event presented by organizations listed in 

(1) or by the City; 

7. Producers of farm products raised in Oregon, produced by themselves or their 

immediate families and sold by them or by a member of their immediate family; 

8. Renting or leasing of residential real property, consisting of two or fewer dwelling 

units. 

 

.040 Fees – Generally 

A. There is imposed upon Businesses fees in amount(s) prescribed by Council resolution. It 

is unlawful for any person to conduct business in the City without first having paid said 

fees and obtained a Certificate of Compliance and renewing the license for each year 

thereafter the Business is conducted in the City. 

B. A Certificate of Compliance or an Exemption Certificate shall be effective on the date of 

its issuance and shall be renewed annually thereafter on that date. 

C. The fee imposed by this section is due not later than the issuance date for the Certificate 

of Compliance and annually by that date thereafter. A fee will be deemed delinquent 

thirty (30) days after it is due. Fees are neither refundable nor prorated. 

D. Each branch or location of a business shall obtain a separate Certificate excepting 

warehouses used only in connection with a licensed business. 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 45 of 67



E. The agent(s) of a nonresident business for which a Certificate is required shall be jointly 

liable for payment of the fee and for any penalties for failure to pay the fee or to comply 

with this Chapter’s provisions to the extent and with like effect as if such agent or agents 

were themselves proprietors. 

.050 Presumption of doing business. 

A person is presumed to be doing business in the City and subject to this Chapter if engaged in 

any of the following activities: 

 

A. Advertising or otherwise professing to be doing business within the City; 

B. Delivering goods or providing services to customers within the City; 

C. Owning, leasing or renting personal or real property within the City which is used in a 

trade or business; 

D. Engaging in any transaction involving the production of income from holding property or 

the gain from the sale of property, which is not otherwise exempted in this Chapter.  

Property may be personal, including intangible or real in nature; or 

E. Engaging in any activity in pursuit of gain which is not otherwise exempted in this 

Chapter. 

 

.060 Fee  

The fee for issuance of a Certificate of Compliance shall be set by City Council resolution.   

 

.070 Businesses not operating from a facility within the City. 

Unless otherwise provided in Section .030 all persons doing business within the City are subject 

to provisions of this Chapter regardless of the location of the facility used as the base for 

conducting such business. 

 

.080 Application procedures 

A. All licenses shall be issued by the City Recorder upon written application provided by the 

City Recorder. 

B. If more than one business takes place at the same location and is operated under the same 

ownership but is operated under other business name(s), one application may be filed 

provided each business is clearly and separately identified and all relevant information is 

included in the unified application. 

C. No Certificate may be transferred without written application to the City Recorder. An 

entry of a transfer shall be made by the Recorder in the License records for which the 

Recorder shall charge and receive a fee as established by Council resolution. 

D. An application for an initial Certificate of Compliance or an application for a change in 

address due to the relocation of a currently licensed business shall be accompanied by full 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 46 of 67



payment of an application fee. No such application shall be accepted by the City 

Recorder unless all information contained therein is complete. 

.090 Falsifying application information – Failure to comply 

A. No person shall make any false or misleading statement to the City Recorder for 

determining the amount of any fee to be paid the City or to fail to comply with any 

provision(s) of this Chapter. 

B. In the event a person fails, refuses or neglects to obtain the Certificate before it becomes 

delinquent, the Recorder shall collect a penalty of five percent (5%) for each calendar 

month or fraction thereof for the period of the delinquency which sum shall be in addition 

to the required fee. 

 

.100 Violation does not exempt payment of fee. 

Violation of any provision of this Chapter does not operate to relieve a Business of liability for 

paying any fee or penalty for which such Business is liable nor shall payment of any such fee or 

penalty be a bar to or prevent any judicial proceedings being brought by the City for violations of 

this Chapter. 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 47 of 67



Memo Amending Sign Ordinance 
Page 1 of 2 

 

Agenda Item No. 10B 

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:   May 14, 2013 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  Martha DeBry, City Manager 

Subject: Second Reading Ordinance No. 416 Amending Sign Ordinance Section 
16.80 (12-009-01-ZDA) 

Request:  Council consider adoption of Ordinance No. 416: An Ordinance of the City 
Council of the City of North Plains, Oregon, approving amendments of Municipal Code 
Chapter 16.80 Sign Standards--Zoning and Development Code regarding signs: 12-009-
01-ZDA 
 
Background:  As discussed with the City Council on April 1 and May 6, 2013, a revised 
sign ordinance was recommended by the Planning Commission. 
 
Representatives of the three commercial businesses at Highland Court and Glencoe 
provided comments and requested that Council consider amending 16.80.045 to 
grandfather existing signs. 
 
The agreed upon amendment was: 
 
16.80.045.D  Highway Signs.  Any non-conforming signs located at tax lots 
1N312AB00400, 1N301DC06300 or 1N3120000200, that were approved under 
previous regulations, or for which a variance was granted, and which was installed prior 
to April 1, 2013 will be permitted until such time that all or a portion of the sign is 
removed or substantially damaged for any reason including acts of god.  Highway signs 
cannot be altered in physical dimensions. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  Adoption of the ordinance has no fiscal impact on the City.  
 
Environmental Issues: None identified. 
 
Recommendation: 1. Open hearing to accept public comments 
 2. Close hearing 
 3. The City Council read Ordinance No. 416 by title only for the 

second time 
4. Motion to adopt 

 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 48 of 67



Memo Amending Sign Ordinance 
Page 2 of 2 

Sample Motion: I move to read Ordinance No. 416, by title only for the second time. 
 
Ordinance Title: An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of North Plains, Oregon, 
approving amendments of municipal code chapter 16.80 Sign Standards--Zoning and 
Development Code Regarding Signs: 12-009-01-ZDA 
 
Sample Motion:  I move to adopt Ordinance No. 416 amending Sign Ordinance 
Section 16.80 (12-009-01-ZDA).  
 
 
 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 49 of 67



Page 1 of 2 – Ordinance No. 416 

Adopted: May 20, 2013 

ORDINANCE NO. 416   
 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, 

OREGON, APPROVING AMENDMENTS OF MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 16.80 

SIGN STANDARDS—ZONING AND DEVELOPMENT CODE REGARDING SIGNS: 

12-009-01-ZDA 

 

 

THE NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL FINDS:   
  

WHEREAS, the City adopted its last revision to Code Chapter 16 by Ordinance No. 392, 

adopted on February 6, 2012; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of North Plains finds the current Municipal Code 

Zoning and Development Standard Chapters need to be amended as follows: R-5 Zone to 

increase the minimum lot size of duplex, triplex, and attached family homes to 4,000 square feet, 

to modify setback and height standards, modify lot coverage standards, make grammatical 

revisions, correct errors, clarify language, clarify the sign code chapter, edit definitions, omit 

staff position titles throughout the code, and to clarify application procedures and requirements; 

and  

 

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 413 adopted all changes recommended with 12-0209-01-ZDA 

except the amendments to the sign ordinance; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that notice of the proposed amendments were mailed to the 

State Department of Land Conservation and Development a minimum of 45 days before the 

initial hearing; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on the proposed amendments 

during its December 12, 2012 and January 9, 2013, regular meetings and recommended approval 

of the proposed revisions to the City Council; and 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON, ORDAINS 

AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1. Adopt revised Municipal Code Chapter 16.80 Zoning and 

Development Standards pursuant to the findings contained 

in the Staff Report; a copy of which is marked Exhibit “A.” 

 

Section 2. Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance or its 

application to any person or circumstances is held to be 

unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, the remainder of 

this Ordinance or the application of the provisions to other 

persons or circumstances shall not be affected. 

 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 50 of 67



Page 2 of 2 – Ordinance No. 416 

Adopted: May 20, 2013 

INTRODUCED for first reading on the 6th day of May, 2013, for second reading AND 

ADOPTION on the 20th of May, 2013.  

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON 
 

 

By:  ____________________________________________ 

David Hatcher, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

By:  ____________________________________________ 

Martha DeBry, City Manager/City Recorder 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 51 of 67



 16.80 - 1 

Chapter 16.80 
SIGN STANDARDS 

 
 
16.80.000 Definitions 
The following terms are defined for the purpose of this chapter in order to provide 
clarification of certain words or terms used in the Ordinance. 
   
 A. Abandoned sign - A sign or sign structure where: 
 
  1. A sign is no longer in use.  Discontinuance of sign use may be 

shown by cessation of use of the premises where the sign is 
located; 

 
  2. A sign has been damaged, in excess of 50% of the value of the sign, 

and repairs and restoration are not started within ninety days 
of the date the sign was damaged, or are not diligently 
pursued, once started. 

 
 B. Awning - A shelter projecting from and supported by the exterior wall of a 

building constructed of   rigid or non-rigid materials on a supporting 
framework. 

 
 C. Awning Sign - A sign affixed or applied to the exterior facing surface or 

surfaces of an awning or a sign hanging from the supports of an 
awning, provided that the clearance below the sign shall be at least 8 
feet. 

 
 D. Building Frontage, Primary -The portion of a building face most closely in 

alignment with an adjacent right-of-way.  A gasoline service station 
may use the overhanging canopy as a substitute for building 
frontage when computing the allowable sign area.  The longest side 
of the canopy shall be used to compute the allowable sign area. 

 
 E. Building Wall, Side - The wall of a building most nearly perpendicular with 

a street abutting the buildings lot regardless of whether such is 
functionally the front, rear, end or side of the building.  

 
 F. Canopy - A permanent roof-like structure projecting from a building and 

open on at least one side for the purpose of shielding a pedestrian 
walkway from the elements, or a freestanding roof-like structure 
supported by columns intended to shield a vehicular driveway or 
service area from the elements. 

 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 52 of 67

psmith
Text Box
Exhibit A



 16.80 - 2 

 G. Canopy Sign - A sign, affixed or applied to, a canopy or eve, at any angle 
relative to the adjacent wall, the lowest portion of which is at least 
eight (8) feet above the underlying grade. 

 
 H. Changeable Copy Sign - A sign whose informational content can be 

changed or altered by manual, electric, electro-mechanical, 
electronic or optical means. 

 
 I. Copy - The graphic content of a sign surface in either permanent or 

removable letter, pictographic, symbolic, or alphabetic form. 
 

 J. Electronic Message Sign - A permanent sign providing information in both 
a horizontal and vertical format(as opposed to linear) sign copy, on 
which copy is created through use of a pattern of lights in a dot matrix 
configuration, which may be changed intermittently.  Video signs 
are not included in this definition.  Electronic message signs 
permitted under this chapter shall comply with the following 
standards: 

 
1. The rate of change for sign copy from one message to 

another message shall be no more frequent than every 
eight seconds and the actual copy change shall be 
accomplished in four seconds or less.  Once changed, 
the copy shall remain static until the next change. 

 
2. Displays may travel horizontally or scroll vertically onto 

electronic message signs, but must hold in a static 
position after completing the travel or scroll. 

 
3. Electronic message signs requiring more than four seconds to 

change from one copy to another shall be turned off 
during the change interval. 

 
4. Sign copy shall not appear to flash, undulate, or pulse, or 

portray explosions, fireworks, flashes of lights, or 
blinking of chasing lights.  Copy shall not appear to 
move toward or away from the viewer, expand or 
contract, bounce, rotate, spin, twist, or otherwise 
portray graphics or animation as it moves onto, is 
displayed on, or leaves the sign face. 

 
5. No electronic message sign lamp may be illuminated to a 

degree of brightness that is greater than necessary for 
adequate visibility.  In no case may the brightness 
exceed eight thousand nits or equivalent candelas 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 53 of 67



 16.80 - 3 

during daylight hours, or one thousand nits or 
equivalent candelas between dusk and dawn.  Signs 
found to be too bright shall be adjusted or removed as 
directed by the city manager. 

 
J. Frontage - The length of the property line of any one premises along a public 

right-of-way on which it borders.  In the case of a corner lot, the frontage shall 
be the narrowest street frontage. 

 
K. Front Wall - The front wall of a structure shall be the wall of a structure most 

parallel to the frontage of the property.  
 

L. Grade - Grade is the average level of the ground measured five feet from either 
end of the base of the sign, parallel to the sign face.  For signs mounted on 
buildings, the grade is the average level of the sidewalk, alley or ground below 
the mounted sign measured five feet from either end of the sign face. 

 
M. Ground Sign - A permanently affixed sign which is wholly independent of a 

building for support. 
 

N. Height - The height of a sign is the vertical distance measured from the highest 
point of the sign to the grade of the adjacent street or the surface grade 
beneath the sign, whichever is greater. 

 
O. Home Occupation Sign- Such sign shall not exceed four square feet, 

pursuant to Chapter 16.85.005 
 

P. Monument Sign - A sign that has a solid supporting base equal to or greater 
than the width of the sign face, generally made of stone, masonry, or concrete, 
with no separations between the sign and the base. 

 
Q. Mural - Any pictorial or graphic decoration, other than a sign which is applied 

directly to a structure and is neither used for, or intended to achieve the 
purposes of, advertising by the use of lettering or script to draw attention to or to 
direct the observer to a particular business or business location, nor to draw 
attention to specific products, goods or service by the use of a brand name, 
trademark, copyright or any other device restricted in use without permission of 
the owner. 

 
Q. Name Plate - A non-electric on-premise identification sign giving only the 

name, address, and or occupation of an occupant or group of 
occupants. 

 
R. Non-Conforming Sign - A sign which was erected legally, but which does not 

comply with subsequently enacted sign restrictions and regulations. 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 54 of 67



 16.80 - 4 

 
 

 
S. Pan Chanel sign - A sign not contained in a sign box, but rather the 

lettering and sign logos act as their own sign cabinet. 
 

T. Pole sign - A sign that is a freestanding sign connected to the ground by 
one or more supports with the lower edge of the sign separated 
vertically from the ground by a distance of nine feet or greater as 
measured from grade. 

 
U. Projecting sign - A sign that is wholly or partly dependent upon a building 

for support and which projects more than 12 inches from such 
building.  Maximum projection shall be three feet and maximum 
thickness shall be one foot.  A projecting sign shall not project 
above a roof line. 

 
V. Roof Line - Either the eaves of the roof or the top of the parapet, at the 

exterior wall.  (A “mansard roof” is below the top of a parapet and is 
considered a wall for sign purposes.) 

 
W. Roof Sign - Any sign erected over or on the roof line of a building. 

 
X. Sign - Any writing, including letter, word, or numeral; pictorial presentation, 

emblem, including device, symbol or trademark; flag, including 
banner or pennant; or any other device, figure or similar thing which 
is a structure or any part thereof, or is attached to, painted on, or in 
any other manner represented on a building or structure or device; 
and is used to announce, direct attention to, or advertise; and is 
visible from any public right-of- way  

 
Y. Sign Area - The entire area made available by the sign structure for the 

purpose of displaying the advertising message.  For painted signs, 
only that portion of the door, wall, or structure actually devoted to the 
message and associated symbols and background, if any, is 
included in the area.   The sign area as defined, shall be used in 
determining the allowable square footage of signs.   For double 
faced signs, only one side of the sign shall be counted in the total 
maximum area. 

 
 Z. Snipe Sign - A small sign of any material, including but not limited to paper, 

cardboard, wood or metal, attached to any object and having no 
application to the premises where located. 

 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 55 of 67



 16.80 - 5 

AA. Temporary Sign - A sign not permanently affixed to a structure on a 
property.  These signs primarily include, but are not limited to, 
canvas, cloth, rigid plastic or paper, vinyl banners or posters hung on 
a building wall or on a permanent pole such as on a free-standing 
sign support.  Paper signs may only be used for single day events. 

 
 BB. Unlawful Sign - A sign that was constructed without the necessary permits 

or approvals of the city. 
 

CC. Wall Sign - A sign attached essentially parallel to and extending not more 
than eight inches from the wall of a building with no copy on the sides 
or edges.  This definition includes signs painted directly on the wall 
of a building. 

 
DD. Window Sign - A sign installed on the exterior or on or near the interior of a 

window for the purpose of viewing from outside the premises. 
 
 16.80.005 General Provisions 

A. Except as provided in this chapter, a person shall not erect, construct, 
enlarge, alter, repair, move, improve, remove, convert, demolish, 
equip, use or maintain any sign, or cause or permit the same to be 
done, contrary to or in violation of any of the provisions of the sign 
standards. 

 
 B. Except as provided in this chapter, a person shall not erect, construct or 

alter a sign, or permit the same to be done, unless a sign permit has 
been issued by the city.  A sign permit for the construction and 
continued use of a sign is subject to the terms and conditions stated 
in the permit and to the sign standards. 

 
 C. An application for sign permit approval is subject to the procedures set forth 

in this chapter.   
 
 D. A sign shall not be constructed on a site that contains an unlawful sign. 
 
 E. The sign standards are not intended to, and do not restrict speech on the 

basis of its content, viewpoint or message.  Any classification of 
signs in this chapter that permits speech by reason of the type of 
sign, identity of the sign user or otherwise, shall permit any type of 
speech on the sign.  No part of this chapter shall be construed to 
favor commercial speech over noncommercial speech.  To the 
extent any provision of this chapter is ambiguous, the term shall be 
interpreted to not regulate on the basis of speech content, and the 
interpretation resulting in the least restriction of the content of the 
sign message shall prevail. 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 56 of 67



 16.80 - 6 

 
 16.80.010 Signs in Residential Zones 
 A. Permitted Signs 

 1. Signs which meet the following regulation are allowed in the R-2.5 
Zone: One (1) sign, not over nine (9) square feet in area, at each 
entrance to an apartment, townhouse or condominium development. 

 
  2. Signs that meet the following regulations are allowed in the R-2.5, 

R-5 and R-7.5 Zones. 
 

a. One (1) name plate, indirectly illuminated or not 
illuminated, not exceeding one and one-half square 
feet in area for each building. 

 
b. One (1) temporary sign, not illuminated and not 

exceeding six square feet in during the period the 
property is for sale, lease or rent.  The sign shall be 
removed within 10 days after the property is sold, 
leased or rented. 

 
c. One (1) temporary sign, not illuminated and not 

exceeding 32 square feet in area, at each entry to a 
subdivision during the time the tracts or lots in the 
subdivision are for sale.  The signs shall be removed 
within 10 days after the tracts or lots are sold. 

 
d. Homeowner Association Meeting announcements not 

exceeding 3 square feet. 
 

e. Changeable copy signs for institutional uses, not 
exceeding 20 square feet 

 
f. One (1) monument sign not exceeding 32 square feet 

for an institutional use.  The sign shall be setback at 
least 10 feet from the front property line. If the use also 
has a changeable copy sign it shall be incorporated 
into the monument sign. 

 
g. One (1) monument sign at each entry to a subdivision 

not exceeding 32 square feet for the name of a 
residential subdivision.  The sign shall not violate the 
vision clearance requirements. 

  
 
 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 57 of 67



 16.80 - 7 

B. Prohibited Signs 
  
 The following signs are prohibited in all Residential zones: 
 

1. Ground or pole signs 
2. Roof signs 
3. Projecting signs 
4. Temporary signs, except as permitted in Section 16.8019.0130(A)(2) 
5. Snipe Sign 
6. Mural  

 
 16.80.015 Signs in Commercial Zones 
 

A. Permitted Signs 
 

1. Signs which meet the following regulations are allowed in the 
C-1 Zone. 

 
a. One awning or canopy sign not exceeding five (5) 

square feet for each building occupancy. 
 

b. In cases where the main entrance to a business is from 
the front wall of a structure, one (1) wall sign for each 
business affixed to the front wall of a structure with a 
maximum of one square foot of area for each lineal foot 
of building occupancy. 

 
c. In cases where the main entrance to a business is from 

the front wall of a structure, one (1) wall sign for each 
business affixed to a side or rear wall of a building with 
a maximum of one-half square foot of sign area for 
each lineal foot of building occupancy. 

 
d. In cases where the main entrance to a business is from 

a side wall of a structure, one (1) wall sign for each 
business affixed to the side wall of the building with a 
maximum of one square foot of sign area for each 
lineal foot of building occupancy. 

 
e. A sign is not allowed on the side or rear wall of a 

building if the wall is adjacent to, or across the street 
from a residential zone. 

 
f. Window sign, provided that not more than 25% of a 

window is included in a window sign. 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 58 of 67



 16.80 - 8 

 
g. A mural meeting the definition under Section 16.80.00 

will be allowed with no maximum size. 
 

h. Projecting signs meeting the definition under Section 
16.80.000 Projecting signs shall be at least 8 feet over 
the grade adjacent to the building.  Projecting signs 
may project one foot if at least 8 feet above grade and 
increase one foot of projection for each one feet of 
elevation over 8 feet to a maximum projection of 3 feet. 

 
i. One monument sign meeting the definition under 

Section 16.80.00, not exceeding 32 square feet for 
institutional uses. 

 
j. One changeable copy sign incorporated into the 

allowable square footage of signs for the property.    
 

2. Signs which meet the following regulations are allowed in the 
C-2 Zone. 

 
    a. One awning or canopy sign not exceeding five (5) 

square feet for each building occupancy. 
 
    b. In cases where the main entrance to a business is from 

the front wall of a structure, one (1) wall sign for each 
business affixed to the front wall of a structure with a 
maximum of one square foot of area for each lineal foot 
of building occupancy. 

 
c. In cases where the main entrance to a business is from 

the front wall of a structure, one (1) wall sign for each 
business affixed to a side or rear wall of a building with 
a maximum of one-half square foot of sign area for 
each lineal foot of building occupancy. 

 
d. In cases where the main entrance to a business is from 

a side wall of a structure, one (1) wall sign for each 
business affixed to the side wall of the building with a 
maximum of one square foot of sign area for each 
lineal foot of building occupancy. 

 
    e. No sign shall be allowed on the side or rear wall of a 

building if the wall is adjacent to, or across the street 
from a residential zone. 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 59 of 67



 16.80 - 9 

 
    f. Window sign, provided that not more than 25% of a 

window’s area is included in a window sign. 
 

g. One monument sign not exceeding 32 square feet for 
each driveway, except that monument signs shall not 
be located adjacent to, or across from residential 
zones. 

  
h. For properties with greater than 200 feet of total street 

frontage, one monument sign for each street frontage 
with a maximum area of ½ square foot per lineal foot of 
property frontage with a maximum area of 50 square 
feet for each sign.  Such sign shall not be in addition to 
the monument sign allowed in subsection g of this 
section. 

 
i. A mural meeting the definition under Section 

16.80.000 is allowed with no maximum size. 
 
    j One changeable copy sign incorporated into the 

allowable square footage of signs for the property. 
 

B. Prohibited Signs 
 

1. The following signs are prohibited in the C-1 Zone: 
 

a. Ground and pole signs 

b. Roof signs 

c. Snipe sign 
 

2. The following signs are prohibited in the C-2 Zone: 

a. Ground or pole sign 

b. Roof signs 

c. Projecting signs 

d. Snipe sign 
 
 
 

 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 60 of 67



 16.80 - 10 

 16.80.020 Signs in Neighborhood Community Zone 
 

A. Permitted Signs 
 

Signs located in the NC Zone: 
 
1.  Signs located in the residential portions of the NC zone shall 

comply with signs allowed in Section 16.80.010. 
 

2. Signs located in the commercial portions of the NC zone shall 
comply with signs allowed in the C-1 zone. 

 
   3. Signs in mixed use areas shall comply with signs allowed in 

C-1 zone. 
 

B. Prohibited Signs 
 

1. Ground and pole signs 

2. Roof signs 

3. Temporary signs, except as permitted in Section 
16.80.010(A)(2) 

4. Snipe Sign 
 
 16.80.025 Signs in Industrial Zones 
 

A. Permitted Signs 
 

1. Signs that meet the following regulations are allowed in the 
M-1 Zone. 

 
a. One wall sign a maximum of 32 square feet for each 

business located on a property. 
 

b. A sign is not allowed on the side or rear wall of a 
building if the wall is adjacent to, or across the street 
from a residential zone. 

 
c. One monument sign not exceeding 32 square feet for 

each driveway, except that monument signs are not 
allowed adjacent to, or across from a residential zone.  

 
d. A mural meeting the definition under Section 

16.80.000 is allowed with no maximum size. 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 61 of 67



 16.80 - 11 

 
2. Signs that meet the following regulations are allowed in the 

M-2 Zone. 
 

a. One wall sign a maximum of 32 square feet for each 
business located on a property. 

 
b. A sign is not allowed on the side or rear wall of a 

building if the wall is adjacent to, or across the street 
from a residential zone. 

 
c. One monument sign not exceeding 32 square feet for 

each driveway, except that monument signs shall not 
be located adjacent to, or across from residential 
zones.  

 
d. A mural meeting the definition under Section 

16.80.000 is allowed with no maximum size. 
 

B. Prohibited Signs 
 

1. Signs prohibited in the M-1 Zone: 
 

a. Ground or pole sign 

b. Roof signs 

c. Projecting signs 

d. Snipe sign 

e. Changeable copy sign, except gasoline price signs 
 

2. Signs prohibited in the M-2 Zone 
a. Ground or pole sign 

b. Roof signs 

c. Projecting signs 

d. Snipe sign 

e. Changeable copy sign, except gasoline price signs 
 
 16.80.030 Temporary Signs 
 

 The following temporary signs are permitted in all zones  

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 62 of 67



 16.80 - 12 

 
A. Temporary signs and banners, posted by the city or community 

organizations for a maximum period of six months from the date a 
permit is issued. 

 
B. A temporary sign posted on a property that is for sale, lease or rental 

does not require a permit from the city.  The signs shall not be 
illuminated, shall not exceed thirty-two (32) square feet in area and 
shall not be placed within the right-of-way.  The sign shall be 
removed within 10 days after the property is sold, leased or rented. 

 
D. Portable signs are considered temporary signs for the purposes of 

this ordinance. 
 

E. All temporary signs that require a permit shall also pay a deposit to 
the city.  The deposit shall be returned in full once all signs are 
removed from the city and disposed of or stored within the time limits 
of the sign permits.  If a sign is not removed within the time period of 
the permit, the city may use the deposit to defray the costs of 
removing the sign.  

 
F. Only one temporary sign permit shall be issued per business in any 

six month period of the calendar year.  A temporary sign permit shall 
be issued for a maximum of 6 signs.  

 
 16.80.035 Additional Regulations Applicable to all Zones. 
 

A. Lighting exterior to the structures shall be shielded in such a manner 
as to confine emitted light within the boundary of the property from 
which it originated except lighting installed to illuminate the American 
Flag or Oregon State Flag may project into the air to properly 
illuminate the flag, however, such lighting shall not project onto 
adjacent property or into a public right of way. 

 
B. When a sign is removed or replaced, all brackets, poles, and other 

structural elements that supported the sign and are not being used 
for the new sign shall also be removed.  Affected building surfaces 
shall be restored to match the adjacent portion of the structure. 

 
C. Signs and supporting hardware, including temporary signs and 

time/temperature signs shall be structurally safe, clean, free of 
visible defects, and functioning properly at all times.  Repairs to 
signs shall be equal to or better in quality of materials and design 
than the original sign. 

 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 63 of 67



 16.80 - 13 

  D. All signs shall be maintained at all times in a state of good repair, and 
no  person shall maintain or permit to be maintained on any 
premises owned or controlled by him/her, any sign which is in a 
sagging, leaning, fallen, decayed, deteriorated, or otherwise 
dilapidated or in an unsafe condition. 

 
 16.80.040 Abandoned Signs 
 

Any sign that is unused for more than 90 consecutive days shall be deemed 
abandoned and shall be removed by the property owner, except that if the 
sign is in a vacant commercial or industrial space , the sign may remain 
provided there is an active attempt to obtain tenants for the space and 
provided all advertising copy is removed and a blank sign face is 
maintained.   

 
  For the purposes of this Section, “unused” shall mean the absence of copy 

or advertising message or the sign is on a property that is not in use. 
 
 16.80.045 Non-Conforming Signs 
 

A. Non-conforming signs may continue to exist, subject to the following 
provisions: 

 
   1. Any sign that does was approved under previous regulations, 

or for which a variance was granted, shall either be removed 
or brought into compliance with this ordinance as a condition 
of approval of design review on the appurtenant property. 

 
2. Temporary and portable signs that are not in conformance 

with the provisions of this Ordinance shall be regarded as 
non-conforming and shall be removed within 90 days of the 
effective date of this ordinance. 

 
   3. No additions or enlargements may be made to a 

non-conforming sign except those additions or enlargements 
that are required by law. 

 
   4. A sign that is moved, replaced, or structurally altered shall be 

brought into conformance with this section, except that: 
 
    a. Non-conforming signs may be repaired and 

maintained and may have the sign copy changed.  A 
sign may be removed from its sign structure for repair 
or maintenance if a permit is obtained under this 
section. 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 64 of 67



 16.80 - 14 

 
    b. Non-conforming signs may be structurally altered 

when the alteration is necessary for structural safety. 
 
    c. Non-conforming signs may be reconstructed if 

required to be moved for construction or repair of 
public works or public utilities and the sign 
reconstruction is completed within ninety days after the 
completion of the public works or public utility 
construction or repair. 

 
   5. A non-conforming sign that is damaged shall not be repaired if 

the estimated expense to repair the sign exceeds fifty percent 
of the replacement cost of the sign as of the day before the 
sign was damaged.  A damaged non-conforming sign that 
cannot be repaired shall be removed within ninety days of the 
date the sign was damaged.  As used herein, 
“non-conforming sign” includes the sign structure, foundation 
and supports. 

 
   6. Whenever a non-conforming sign is damaged and the 

estimated cost to repair the sign is fifty percent or less of its 
replacement value as of the day before the sign was 
damaged, it may be repaired and restored to the condition it 
was in before it was damaged and may continue to be used as 
a non-conforming sign, provided that such repairs and 
restoration are started within ninety days of the date the sign 
was damaged and are diligently pursued thereafter. 

 
   7. Whenever repair and/or restoration to a damaged 

non-conforming sign is not started within ninety days of the 
date the sign is damaged or is diligently pursued once started, 
the sign shall be deemed abandoned. 

 
   8. Abandoned signs shall not be permitted as non-conforming 

signs. 
 
   9. No non-conforming sign shall be permitted to remain unless 

properly repaired and maintained as provided in this section.  
A sign maintained in violation of this provision shall be 
removed as provided in Section A.1. of this Section.  Any 
non-conforming sign that is determined by the building official 
to be an unsafe sign shall be removed as provided by Section 
A.5. of this Section.  Any non-conforming sign determined by 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 65 of 67



 16.80 - 15 

the city manager to be an abandoned sign shall be removed 
as provided in subsection A.7.of this section. 

 
  B. Nothing in this section shall be deemed to prevent the maintenance 

of any sign, or regular manual changes of sign copy on a sign. 
 

C. This section shall not require the removal or modification of a sign if 
the sign is in good condition, and located on a historically significant 
structure or object as recognized in the Comprehensive Plan.  

 
D. Highway Signs.  Any non-conforming signs located at tax lots 

1N312AB00400, 1N301DC06300 or 1N3120000200, that were 
approved under previous regulations, or for which a variance was 
granted, and which was installed prior to April 1, 2013 will be 
permitted until such time that all or a portion of the sign is removed or 
substantially damaged for any reason including acts of god.  
Highway signs cannot be altered in physical dimensions. 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 66 of 67



June 2013 Council Calendar 
 
 

Meeting Primary Alternate Note Date 

City Council 7:00 p.m. 6/3 

Ice Cream Social   6:30 p.m. 6/4 

Washington County Coordinating 
Committee (WCCC) Hatcher DeBry 2nd Monday @  12 noon 6/10 

Planning Commission Newton  2nd Wednesday @ 7 p.m. 6/12 

Washington County Office of 
Community Development: Policy 
Advisory Board 

Kindel Demagalski 2nd Thursday @ 7 p.m. 6/13 

City Council 7:00 p.m. 6/17 

Library Board 
 Warren  3rd Wednesday @ 7 p.m. 6/19 

Metro Policy Advisory Committee 
(MPAC) Hatcher Newton 4th Wednesday @ 5 p.m. 6/26 

Parks Board   4th Wednesday @ 6:30 p.m. 6/26 

Metropolitan Area 
Communications Commission 
(MACC) 

Warren Lenahan   

Northwest Oregon Area 
Commission on Transportation 
(NWACT) 

Lenahan DeBry   

 

Agenda Item: 12B 

_____________________________ 
City Council Agenda Packet 
May 20, 2013 
Page 67 of 67


	4A 052013 Preliminary Agenda
	4B 050613 Meeting Minutes
	6  Memo EMS Proclamation
	6A 2013 EMS Week Proclamation
	6A EMS BBQ FD and HSP invite
	7A Memo State Revenue Sharing
	7A Resolution No. 17xx State Revenue Sharing Meeting Qualifications
	7A Resolution Number 17XX Receive State Shared Revenues
	8A Memo FLL
	8A1 2013_FLL_Natures_Fury_Balance_Sheet
	2013 Natures Fury

	8B Memo Farmers market
	8C Memo senior water rate
	8D Memo city attorney
	8D Resolution Number 1786 Beery Elsner
	8D1 city attorney contract
	8E April 2013 Check Register
	8E April 2013 Check Register Auto Pay
	10A 1 Memo business license ordinance
	10Ac Ordinance business license
	10A Code Chapter 6.15 - Proposed Business License ordinance
	10B Memo Ordinance No. 416 Sign Ordinance
	10B Ordinance No. 416 Sign Ordinance
	10B Municiple Code Chapter 16.80 Sign Standards
	12B June 2013 Council Calendar



